Public Document Pack

Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01235 422523
E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 12 November 2018
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 21 NOVEMBER 2018 AT 6.00 PM
DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN
Members of the Committee:
Toby Newman (Chairman)
Anthony Dearlove (ViceChairman)
Joan Bland
Lorraine Hillier
Elaine Hornsby

Mocky Khan
Jeannette Matelot
David Nimmo-Smith
Ian Snowdon

David Turner
Ian White

Stefan Gawrysiak
Elizabeth Gillespie
Sue Lawson

Sue Cooper

Substitutes
Nigel Champken-Woods
Steve Connel
John Cotton

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request. These include
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on
this agenda. Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.
MARGARET REED
Head of Legal and Democratic

1

1

Chairman's announcements

To receive any announcements from the chairman and general housekeeping matters.
2

Apologies for absence

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.
3

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 5 - 12)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Planning Committee minutes of the meeting
held on 17 October 2018.
4

Declarations of interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on
the agenda for this meeting.
5

Urgent business

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the
matters urgent and to receive any notification of any applications deferred or
withdrawn.
6

Proposals for site visits

7

Public participation

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.

Development control applications
Planning applications - background papers and additional
information
All the background papers with the exception of those papers marked
exempt/confidential (eg those held in enforcement files) used in the reports in this
agenda are held in the application file (working file) referenced by the application
number.
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be
reported and summarised at the meeting.

2

Summary index of applications
Site Address

Proposal

Application No

8

Land to the
West of
Wallingford
(Site B)

Ancillary highway works to include
bank re-profiling and consequential
tree/landscape removal along Calvin
Thomas Way to deliver the access
approved in planning permission
P14/S2860/O.

9

Land East of
Chalgrove,
OX44 7RQ

Erection of 120 residential dwellings P18/S1853/RM
with associated parking, open space,
play areas (including equipped play
space), landscaping and works.

10

The Beeches,
Woodperry
Road, Beckley,
OX3 9UZ

Outline application for one detached
dwelling house.

P18/S2953/O

41 - 50

11

10 Hill Road
(The Rectory),
Watlington,
OX49 5AD

Erection of a detached, two storey
dwelling with associated parking and
landscaping.

P18/S1259/FUL

51 - 60

12

Annexe,
Crowsley Park
Farm,
Crowsley, RG9
4JN

Retention of Crowsley Park
Farmhouse Annexe as an
independent residential dwelling and
for associated alterations to the
building.

P18/S2377/FUL &
P18/S2378/LB

61 - 74

13

15 Hocketts
Close,
Whitchurch
Hill, RG8 7PZ

Division of existing residence into
two separate dwellings.

P18/S2504/FUL

75 - 82

P18/S2617/FUL

Page
13 - 22

23 - 40

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 3

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
HELD ON WEDNESDAY 17 OCTOBER 2018 AT 6.00 PM
DIDCOT CIVIC HALL, BRITWELL ROAD, DIDCOT, OX11 7JN
Present:
Anthony Dearlove (Vice-Chairman in the Chair), Joan Bland, John Cotton, Lorraine Hillier,
Mocky Khan, David Nimmo-Smith, Ian Snowdon, David Turner and Ian White

Apologies:
Toby Newman, Elaine Hornsby and Jeannette Matelot tendered apologies.

Officers:
Samantha Allen, Paula Fox, Simon Kitson, Paul Lucas, Nicola Meurer, Davin Sarac, Luke
Veillet and Tom Wyatt

110 Chairman's announcements
The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

111 Minutes of the previous meeting
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2018 as a
correct record and agree that the Chairman sign these as such.

112 Declarations of interest
David Nimmo-Smith declared in relation to application P18/S1510/FUL – land at Newtown
Road, Henley-on-Thames, that although he is a member of Henley Town Council, he has
had no involvement in the consideration of this application.

113 Urgent business
The development manager reminded committee that application P18/S1964/FUL had been
deferred to allow for a site visit.

114 Proposals for site visits
There were no proposals for site visits.
Page 5
1

115 Public participation
The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the
meeting.

116 P18/S0967/FUL & P18/S0992/LB - Manor Farm, Brookstones,
Sydenham
Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the committee and took no
part in the debate or voting for this item.
The committee considered applications P18/S0967/FUL & P18/S0992/LB for the
demolition, extension, alteration and conversion of existing buildings to form four dwellings
with parking and amenity space at Manor Farm, Brookstones, Sydenham.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Mark Oliver, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.
Jake Collinge, Jon Quesnel and Philippa Quesnel spoke in support of the application.
Ian White, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve application P18/S0967/FUL was declared
carried on being put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S0967/FUL, subject to the
following conditions:
1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to the commencement of
development.
4. Hard and soft landscaping to be agreed prior to the commencement of
development.
5. Protected species licence to be submitted prior to the commencement of
development.
6. Plan of car parking provision to be agreed prior to the commencement of
development.
7. A preliminary risk assessment to be carried out for contaminated land.
8. The garages shall not be converted into accommodation.
9. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions and outbuildings.
10. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for means of enclosure.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve application P18/S0967/FUL was declared
carried on being put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant listed building consent for application P18/S0992/LB, subject to the
following conditions:
1. Commencement of works within three years.
Page 6
2

2. Works to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to the commencement of works.

117 P18/S1964/FUL - Land off Fieldside Track, Long Wittenham
This application had been deferred to allow members to visit the site.

118 P18/S1968/FUL & P18/S1969/LB - Winterbrook Farm House, 6
Winterbrook, Wallingford
The committee considered applications P18/S1968/FUL and P18/S1969/LB for the
demolition of an existing redundant agricultural barn and outbuildings; the erection of two
two-storey dwellings with detached single-storey, four-bay carports; upgrading of the
existing access to include part demolition of the existing brick walls to provide adequate
visibility; proposed new sections of brick wall to access the drive; proposed new parking
and turning area; demolition of the existing curtilage listed outbuilding and replacement
with a new single-storey outbuilding; re-pointing and repair of sections of existing curtilage
listed brick walls; and associated landscaping at Winterbrook Farm House, 6 Winterbrook,
Wallingford.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Adam Jones spoke in support of the application.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve application P18/S1968/FUL was declared
carried on being put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S1968/FUL, subject to the
following conditions:
1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Schedule of materials.
4. Flintwork - traditional construction.
5. Contaminated land (preliminary risk assessment).
6. Landscaping (including boundary treatment).
7. Construction traffic management.
8. Contaminated land - remediation strategy.
9. Foul drainage works (details required).
10. Surface water drainage works (details required).
11. Existing vehicular access.
12. Obscure glazing.
13. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained.
14. Matching materials (wall).
15. Vision splay protection.
16. No garage conversion into accommodation.
17. Wild bird informative.
18. Conservation area tree informative.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve application P18/S1969/LB was declared
carried on being put to the vote.
Page 7
3

RESOLVED: to grant listed building consent for application P18/S1969/LB, subject to the
following conditions:
1. Commencement three years - listed building consent.
2. Approved plans listed building.
3. Matching materials (wall).

119 P18/S1510/FUL - Land at Newtown Road, Henley-On-Thames
Joan Bland and Lorraine Hillier, two of the local ward councillors, stepped down from the
committee and took no part in the debate or voting for this item.
The committee considered application P18/S1510/FUL erect a three-bedroom house
together with landscaping and parking on land at Newtown Road, Henley-On-Thames.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Laurence Plant, a representative of Henley Town Council, spoke objecting to the
application.
Ilona Shields, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.
Daniel Rose, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.
Joan Bland and Lorraine Hillier, two of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the
application.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being
put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S1510/FUL, subject to the
following conditions:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Commencement of development within three years.
Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
No change in levels.
Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to their first use.
Tree protection to be implemented in accordance with the approved
details.
6. Noise assessment and control scheme to be submitted and agreed prior to
development above foundation level.
7. Close the existing access prior to occupation of the new dwelling.
8. Parking and manoeuvring areas retained in accordance with the approved plans.
9. Landscaping to be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
10. No windows, doors or other openings on first floor north-west facing
elevation.
11. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions, porch,
outbuildings, and hard-standings.
12. Vision splays to be provided prior to occupation of the new dwelling.
Page 8
4

120 P18/S1260/FUL - 19 The Ridgeway, Nettlebed
David Nimmo-Smith stepped down from the committee and took no part in the debate or
voting for this item.
The committee considered application P18/S1260/FUL to erect a detached two-storey
three-bedroom dwelling replacing the garage and outbuildings at 19 The Ridgeway,
Nettlebed.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Wendy Ayre-Tilbury, a representative of Nettlebed Parish Council, spoke objecting to the
application.
Peter Leverett and Lorna Jones spoke objecting to the application.
Ian Whitworth, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.
David Nimmo-Smith, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.
A motion was moved to defer the application to allow members to visit the site, but not
seconded.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being
put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S1260/FUL, subject to the
following conditions:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Commencement of development within three years.
Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
No change in levels without written agreement.
Schedule of materials to be agreed prior to first use.
Obscure glazing to the north-west facing stairwell window.
Landscaping (including hard-surfacing and boundary treatment) to be agreed.
Existing vehicular access to be improved prior to occupation.
Surface water drainage works to be agreed.
Parking & manoeuvring areas to be provided and retained in accordance with the
approved plans.
10. Foul drainage works to be agreed.
11. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for extensions and outbuildings.
12. Vision splay protection implementation as on plan prior to occupation.
13. No surface water drainage to highway.

121 P18/S2708/FUL - American Barn, Crockmore Farm, Henley Park,
Fawley
Mocky Khan arrived at committee for the consideration of this item.
David Nimmo-Smith stepped down from the committee and took no part in the debate or
voting for this item.
Page 9
5

Part way through the consideration, members of the committee voted to continue the
meeting beyond the guillotine to complete the item.
The committee considered application P18/S2708/FUL to convert the existing american
barn and stables with linking extensions to create a three-bedroom dwelling with
associated parking and amenity space at Crockmore Farm, Henley Park, Fawley.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Lisbeth Thiesen, a representative of Bix and Assendon Council, spoke objecting to the
application.
Christine Collas, a local resident, spoke objecting to the application.
Simon Sharp, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.
David Nimmo-Smith, one of the local ward councillors, spoke objecting to the application.
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that the application
is for a conversion, if a rebuild were required, the applicants would require further planning
permission.
A motion, moved and seconded, to refuse the application was declared lost on being put to
the vote.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being
put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P18/S2708/FUL, subject to the
following conditions:
1. Commencement of development within three years.
2. Development to be implemented in accordance with the approved plans.
3. Prior to the commencement of any works to the existing buildings, a schedule of the
external materials shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA).
4. A scheme for the landscaping of the site, including planting, boundary treatment
and hardstanding, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA prior to
the commencement of the development and implemented prior to the first
occupation.
5. The developer shall confirm in writing to the LPA the presence of any unsuspected
contamination encountered during the development. In the event of any
contamination to the land and/or water being encountered, no development shall
continue until a programme of investigation and/or remedial works to include
methods of monitoring and certification of such works undertaken has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.
6. No permitted development to the exterior of the buildings or the erection of
incidental/ ancillary structures (as described Under Part 1, Classes A, B, C, E and F
of the Order).
7. No permitted development by means of enclosure (as described Under Part 2,
Class A) shall be erected within the curtilage of the site.
Page 10
6

122 P18/S1868/FUL - Harpsden Wood House, Harpsden Woods,
Harpsden
Application P18/S1868/FUL to erect a woodland maintenance barn at Harpsden Wood
House, Harpsden Woods, Harpsden was deferred due to the meeting guillotine having
been reached prior to its consideration.

123 P18/S1215/FUL - Thame Park Road, Thame
Application P18/S1215/FUL for a variation of condition 2 (approved plans of planning
permission P15/S2166/RM) to remove the side windows from plots 12 and 13 at Thame
Park Road, Thame was deferred due to the meeting guillotine having been reached prior
to its consideration.
The meeting closed at 8.35 pm

Chairman

Date

Page 11
7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBER(S)

APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL

OFFICER

P18/S2617/FUL
FULL APPLICATION
6.9.2018
Brightwell Cum Sotwell
Pat Dawe
Elaine Hornsby
Imran Lokhon
Jane Murphy
St Edward Homes Limited
Land to the West of Wallingford (Site B) Wallingford
Ancillary highway works to include bank re-profiling
and consequential tree/landscape removal along
Calvin Thomas Way to deliver the access approved
in planning permission P14/S2860/O (as amended
by revised planting details16 October 2018).
Cathie Scotting

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
Outline planning permission for the strategic neighbourhood in west Wallingford
including 555 dwellings was granted 4 October 2017. Access together with
landscaping for the main access was permitted and all other matters are reserved. In
February tree and vegetation clearance began along the A4130, Calvin Thomas Way/
Bosley Way, to facilitate the main access works. At this point it became evident that
the detailed S278 highway works entailed engineering operations that were not shown
on the approved drawings, and in turn these works necessitated the removal of more
trees and vegetation than was identified on the approved drawings.

1.2

Prior to this application P17/S4049/FUL had been submitted for works to the existing
access to Fir Tree cottage for a temporary period during construction. This application
proposed significant excavation and tree removal on the northern embankment. This
application has now been withdrawn and no specific works are required to this
existing access beyond the works required for the main access, which are detailed
below.

1.3

The main access permitted under P14/S2860/O incorporates a visibility splay of 9m x
215m in both directions. A single lane duelling of the carriageway is approved allowing
left and right turning in and out of the site. The additional works now proposed stem
from the realignment of the carriageway and the need to level ground to create a safe
breadth of carriageway, verge, kerb and runoff area. A location plan is attached.

2.0
2.1

PROPOSAL
In respect of the works, I refer to the following locations in the report:
1) Northern section - Area north of the existing Fir Tree Cottage access
2) Southern section - Area south of the residential development southern boundary and
adjacent to Wallingford Sports Field
3) Central reservation – The safety reserves within the carriageway north and south of
main access
All the drawings can be viewed on the website under the reference number. Following
a site inspection by District and County Council officers and comments from consultees
amendments were submitted. A black pine (T22a) in the northern section is to be
retained and the replacement planting is to be increased. All highway works and tree
Page 13

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

removal are taking place within the confines of highway land however the planting
proposals are within highway land (the application site), the developer’s residential site
(P14/S2860/O) and now additionally on land operated by Wallingford Sports Trust
(WST) and owned by South Oxfordshire District Council. The amendments also
showed a change to the red line application site incorporating the central reservation
area. The application site does not include the WST/ SODC land.
Northern Area
2.2

The existing carriageway is adjacent to an embankment rising to circa 1.5 m high,
reducing in height towards the north. The bank contains a variety of trees, a hedge and
scrub vegetation including some Black Pines (pinus negra) which are notable
landscape features. Drawing STJ – CTW10 – A shows the highway works to align the
carriageway and provide the access road, verge and runoff area plus a new retaining
embankment. To facilitate these works excavation into the embankment is proposed.
One of the key amendments from the earlier application (P17/S4049/FUL) and the
preliminary S278 works was to change the new retaining embankment from a 1:3 slope
to 1:2 structure resulting in significantly less tree removal. The plans identify the
removal of understorey vegetation and 5 trees, comprising 2 pines, 2 cherry and 1 field
maple. The overall length of the works is 44m.

2.3

Replacement planting for this area is within the highway verge and embankment. It will
comprise 20 trees of beech, field maple, black pine, scots pine, oak, and wild cherry.
The stock height will be 200-250cm for the pines, and 450-625cm for the other species.
There will also be a 105 sq. m of native understorey planting.
Southern Area

2.4

The existing carriageway is on higher ground than the adjacent highway verge and
WST site. The trees along this stretch provide screening to the sports field. Drawing
Drawing STJ – CTW11 – A shows the works raising levels to align the highway verge
and proposed carriageway. The levels will rise by approx. 1.2m at the northern end and
taper to 0.2m at the southern end. The slope will be maximum 1:2m. The visibility splay
for the main access is within the extent of the works. This area will have significant
more tree removal amounting to 44 trees comprising field maple, elder, blackthorn,
cherry, hazel, and one ash. The overall length of works will 106m.

2.5

Replacement planting comprises 50 trees in total (increased from 33) to be located
within the highway verge (30) within the residential site (7) and within the WST land
(13). The replacement species will be lime, elm, beech, field maple, black pine, scots
pine, oak, and wild cherry. The stock height will be 200-250cm for the pines, and 450625cm for the other species. There will also be a 515 sq m of native understorey
planting.
Central reservation

2.6

The approved drawing (D4036.001C) of the outline planning permission (P14/S2860/O)
identifies 11 no. trees are to be planted within the central reservation area. Following
discussions with the highway authority safety concerns were raised. The approved
drawing does not detail the vehicle restraint barrier that would necessary and at the
time of writing further work is being undertaken to ascertain the extent to which these
trees could be retained as part of the landscaping mitigation or whether this planting
would undermine a safe highway. The developer’s application has been prepared on
the basis that these trees are no longer proposed, and an update on this element will
provided at Committee.

Page 14

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

3.0
3.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
A summary of comments is provided below. The detailed comments can be
viewed in full on the website.
Residents (54) - Objections to the proposed development













Loss of trees, of many years growth
Existing trees were planted when bypass was built with the aid of school children
Loss of habitat for mammals, bats, birds
Increase in noise, light pollution, air pollution
Loss of trees contribute towards climate change / global warming
Development needs screening from road
Spoil views from Brightwell cum Sotwell
Effect on Wallingford Sports Trust land and increased light pollution
Replacement planting necessary and a condition to ensure retention of trees
A reduction in the speed limit would reduce length of traffic lanes, and tree loss
A roundabout would be a better solution and involve less land take
Drainage issues on residential development site

3.2

Wallingford Sports Trust – Concerns in respect of the following:
 The complete loss of tree cover and the extremely close proximity of the new road
at the north end of the Jubilee Field. A small area of land which could be used for
replacement planting however the route and fencing of the realigned footpath along
our northern boundary would need to be resolved.
 The reduction of the tree cover to a single row of trees beside the bypass fence for
a significant distance at the northern end of the Jubilee Field. There is no spare
land within the Sports Park to help reinforce the planting in this area as the pitches
and training areas are close to our boundary.
 Bypass traffic will be intrusive and detrimental to the use of the pitches at the
northern end of the Jubilee Field and there is a danger of balls landing on the
bypass
 Use of the verge on the western side of the bypass should be investigated rather
than all the widening on the eastern verge and/or the central reservation was
reduced in width.
 On a separate matter, the proposed position for the footpath crossing is now at the
narrowest point on the central reservation and requires pedestrians to cross two
lanes of fast moving traffic.

3.3

Brightwell-cum-Sotwell Parish Council (interim comments)
 Consider a reduction in speed limit to 50 mph would lead to a reduction in vision
splay and works and cost savings
 Discrepancies in numbers of trees to be replanted
 Timing of planting not specified - programme and monitoring necessary
 Loss of trees – need to see a larger amount of tree panting throughout the site
 The eleven trees in the central reservation are no longer being planted
 There should be a greater diversity of planting e.g oaks
 There should be addiitonal planting within the sports land

3.4

Wallingford Town Council – Object

Page 15

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

3.5

Oxfordshire County Council Single Response - No objection subject to conditions
In principle, the plans and drawings that have been submitted to OCC Highways as part
of this planning application, are agreed. The vehicle restraint system, embankment
gradient and visibility splays are all satisfactory from an engineering perspective.

3.6

Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council)
Response on original plans:








Further tree loss is not supported but as safe access is a requirement for the
approved housing development, it seems to be unavoidable
The works at the northern part of the site will require the loss of a further 6 trees
and a length of understory vegetation. Only 5 of the trees need to be removed,
allowing T22a (Pine) to be retained. A total of 20 new trees are proposed as part of
the wider planting scheme to mitigate for the loss and rescreen the site from the
highway, and vice versa.
The extent of tree removal at the southern end of the site is far more extensive, with
the further loss of 44 trees. The trees form part of the thicket of dense planting that
screen the rugby club from the highway. The applicant proposes further trees in this
area to mitigate for the loss, however given the very limited space available I would
like to see further replanting in the top corner of the rugby field.
To ensure a more robust and long term treescape, a wider range of tree species is
required including longer lived large canopied trees such as Oak, Beech, resistant
Elm, Small leaf Lime and Scots Pine.
On the outline application a row of trees within the new central traffic island have
now been removed from the scheme. The result is the loss of a key arboricultural
feature of the development that would help to alter the character of a section of
busy highway.

Response on amended planting plans:


3.7

The amount of replacment tree planting is acceptable, however there needs to be
clarity on the tree planting in the central reservation, as this planting will assist with
the change in character of the ring road to what will become a well-used residential
access into the development and make it a more attractive place to live.

Countryside Officer
Ecologically speaking the impacts caused by the loss of the existing hedgerow/tree line
along the bypass were accepted when the planning permission was granted for the
development, on the basis that in the longer term the new replacement planting further
into the site would provide compensation. The additional losses to the north are not
significant. The losses to the south are greater but ecologically are unlikely to be
significant in the longer term.

3.8

Landscape Architect
No landscape objection pending approval of mitigation plantings by the Forestry Officer.

3.9

Air Quality - No observations

3.10 Environmental Protection Team - No observations

Page 16

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

3.11 CPRE (Rights of Way)
Brightwell-cum-Sotwell FP25, part of a well-used footpath out of Wallingford leading
towards Mackney, Brightwell-cum-Sotwell and the Moretons cannot be diverted in the
way shown without the applicant first applying for and securing the confirmation of a
diversion order before any landscaping affecting its line takes place.
3.12 Wallingford Castle Archers
Support the views of the Wallingford Sports Trust
In terms of specific interests to the archery club, we are concerned that the reduction in
depth of the vegetation will allow easier pedestrian access onto the site.
 urge the council to ensure that potential pedestrian access through the vegetation is
reduced as far as is reasonably practicable through replanting, or through extra
fencing
 planting is carried out as soon as practicable
4.0
4.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P18/S3001/SCR EIA Screening opinion request in respect of additional highway works
- EIA not required on 08/10/2018
P17/S4049/FUL – Withdrawn (03/10/2018)
Temporary Construction Access for a period of 7 years.
P17/S3679/DIS - Approved (15/01/2018)
Discharge of condition 21 (housing delivery document) of planning permission
P14/S2860/O.
P17/S3568/DIS - Approved (19/12/2017)
Discharge of Condition 20 - Biodiversity of P14/S2860/O
P17/S3806/DIS - Approved (06/12/2017)
Discharge of condition 9 - Phasing on application ref. P14/S2860/O
P17/S3575/DIS - Approved (04/12/2017)
Discharge of Condition 6 - Construction Management Plan on application ref.
P14/S2860/O
P17/S3632/DIS - Approved (04/12/2017)
Discharge of condition 18 - levels on application ref. P14/S2860/O
P17/S3684/DIS - Approved (30/11/2017)
Discharge of Conditions(s) 16 (Site -Wide Drainage Strategy) of planning permission
P14/S2860/O
P17/S3631/DIS - Approved (21/11/2017)
Discharge of condition 15 (contaminated land investigation) on application ref.
P14/S2860/O.
P17/S3577/DIS - Approved (13/11/2017)
Discharge of condition 33 - Noise on application ref. P14/S2860/O
P17/S3569/DIS - Approved (02/11/2017)
Discharge of Condition 27 - Aboricultural Method Statement of P14/S2860/O

Page 17

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

P17/S3566/DIS - Approved (02/11/2017)
Discharge of Condition 7 - Archaeology on P14/S2860/O
P14/S2860/O - Approved (04/10/2017)
Residential development comprising 555 dwellings, a one form entry primary school,
associated landscaping and open spaces, construction of a new access onto the A4130
Calvin Thomas Way/Bosley Way, construction of a public transport link/emergency
access onto Wantage Road and other supporting infrastructure works and facilities. (As
amended by i) revised drawings and supporting information 16 September 2015; ii)
additional information - planting schedule, assessment of Mill Brook and highway
information 24 November 2015; iii) revised bus / emergency access onto Wantage
Road 9 May 2017 and iv) additional drainage information 6 June 2017)
5.0
5.1

POLICY & GUIDANCE
South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies:
Policy CSEN1 Landscape
Policy CSWAL2 Greenfield neighbourhood west of Wallingford

5.2

South Oxfordshire Local Plan saved policies:
C6 Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C9 Loss of landscape features
EP1 Prevention of polluting emissions
EP2 Noise and vibrations
EP3 Light pollution
T1 Transport requirements for new developments

5.3

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

6.0
6.1

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The principal issues concern on the one hand, a need to ensure a safe highway to a
residential development of strategic importance to the Council’s Development Plan and
on the other, a need to ensure that landscape and biodiversity are protected, enhanced
where possible, and that important landscape features are retained. Additionally, there
are other significant environmental issues including noise, light and air pollution.
Highway

6.2

The Highway Authority has confirmed that the proposed engineering principles are
satisfactory.
Landscape and tree planting

6.3

The tree clearance associated with the approved access arrangements under
P14/S2860/O have resulted in a significant impact on the landscape and screening to
the site. As part of the clearance a bund was removed and reports from local residents
advise that noise from the bypass has increased. The additional works result in further
vegetation and tree removal, detailed above in Section 2.

6.4

The loss of further trees in regrettable and all parties have collaborated to ensure that
this loss is kept to a minimum whilst still ensuring a safe highway design can be
implemented. In particular, the works in the southern area and the removal of trees will
have a discernible adverse effect on screening to the sports field and to the residential
development. Associated with this tree removal there will be corresponding adverse

Page 18

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

effects on wildlife and pollution however in time with replacement planting the
landscape screening and habitats will return.
6.5

The replacement planting has improved upon the initial submission, increasing by
number and diversity, and additionally understorey planting is included. The trees will
be mature stock, 2.0 – 2.5m in respect of the pines and 4.5 – 6.25m in respect of other
species, giving immediate impact. The planting within the highway verge, WST land
and the residential site will provide mitigation. The embankment construction method
statement details how the excavation and raising works will be carried out under the
presence of a qualified arboriculturalist, so that all trees identified for retention remain.
Conditions are recommended to ensure that planting takes possible as early as
practicable and that a rigorous maintenance regime is carried out. It is considered the
amended scheme proposes the maximum potential for planting.
Trees within central reservation:

6.6

This application as submitted proposes a central reservation without tree planting.
Proposals for 11 trees within the central reservation areas were agreed as part of the
detail in the outline application (P14/S2860/O). At the time of writing further details are
awaited to inform whether these trees can still be proposed without additional impacts
for the road design and safety. The council wish to retain this proposed planting if
possible as it will provide a more attractive entrance to the engineered road access.
Construction Access:

6.7

The works required in connection with the main access facilitate the visibility splay
necessary for the proposed construction access which utilises the existing Fir Tree
Cottage access. Planning application P17/S4049/FUL was for a construction access
from this existing access and proposed visibility dimensions that were based on the
visibility dimensions necessary for the construction access (9m x 215m) however the
highway authority confirmed that the required visibility would be less (2.4m x 215m) and
this splay falls within the extent of the main access road alignment works. Hence the
excavation and tree removal identified in application P17/S04049/ FUL is not sought
and the application was withdrawn.

6.8

The Fir Tree Cottage access will be used for a temporary period during construction,
encompassing left in and left out traffic and the access will be closed upon completion
of development. These elements are to be secured in the S278 highways agreement.
Other matters:

6.10 Some of the representations raise the possibility of other options and suggest these
could result in less tree removal and land take, and consequentially a lesser impact on
the landscape and biodiversity. Pertinently, it is important to note that this is a ‘bolt on’
application proposing additional works to an already approved scheme. Altering speed
limits or replacing the single land duelling with a roundabout is beyond the scope of this
application which is designed to be in accordance with the approved scheme. The
outline application P14/S2860/O was approved relatively recently (October 2017) taking
into account existing conditions and standards.

Page 19

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

6.11 Speed limit:
Several representations have been made concerning the speed limit on the A4130 and
the perception that a reduced speed limit to 50mph would result in less trees loss. It
needs to be emphasised that this application represents additional engineering details
in respect of the designed and approved junction to meet highway standards for the
existing speed limit of 60mph. There is not the scope to revisit the speed limit in respect
of this application.
6.12 Notwithstanding the confines of this current application which needs to comply with an
approved junction design for 60mph, work has been undertaken by the developer in
respect of a theoretical reduction to a 50mph visibility splay (reduced to 9m x 165m).
This illustrates that there would be no difference to the northern works and the tree loss
would remain the same. In respect of the south a total of 5 more trees could be
retained. In terms of tree loss/ retention therefore a reduced visibility splay would make
little difference.
Rights of way:
6.13 Some comments have been made on the relocation of the footpath which currently runs
along the south of the Site B boundary and north of the Wallingford Sports Trust field.
At the western end the path is proposed to dog leg slightly north to align with the
footpath opposite on the western side of the A4130, that leads to Mackney. The
applicants have made a separate formal application to the district council to divert
Footpath 25 under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to improve the pedestrian
network within the development site and for safer crossing of the A4130. The footpath
will in the south east corner of the residential site (not this application site). Any
concerns over the diversion should be raised through the footpath application.
7.0
7.1

CONCLUSION
The application is for additional highway works required to implement the approved
access under planning permission P14/S2860/O. The technical work that has been
undertaken over the last few months has been on the basis that the engineering,
levelling and excavation works are kept to a minimum and ensuring the highway design
is safe whilst keeping tree and vegetation loss to a minimum. The loss of further trees
and the corresponding environmental effects is regrettable, however it is a necessary
consequence to ensure the approved residential development can progress. It is your
officers’ view that the scheme incorporates the maximum extent of replacement and
new planting possible. Conditions are recommended to ensure a robust planting
scheme is secured.

8.0
8.1

RECOMMENDATION
To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Author:

Commencement two years - implement with P14/S2860/O.
Approved plans.
Tree protection (general).
Landscape implementation.
Landscape maintenance and management plan.
Highway works (implementation as approved).
Cathie Scotting

Contact No: 01235 422600
Email:

planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Page 20

Agenda Item 8

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL
OFFICER

P18/S1853/RM
RESERVED MATTERS
12.6.2018
Chalgrove
David Turner
Miller Homes Ltd and Wates Developments
Land East of Chalgrove, Oxfordshire, OX44 7RQ
Erection of 120 residential dwellings with associated
parking, open space, play areas (including equipped
play space), landscaping and works.
Joan Desmond

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
The application is referred to the Planning Committee because the Officer’s
recommendation conflicts with the view of the Parish Council.

1.2

The application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A)
comprises 7.45ha of agricultural land located on the south-east edge of the village of
Chalgrove. The site is bounded by existing housing development at Farm Close and
Chiltern Close to the west, the B480 to the north, The Grange of Berrick Road to the
south and open agricultural land to the east. A belt of young trees lies at the eastern
end of the site and a public right of way runs along the southern boundary. The site
falls to the brook to the south which runs through the centre of the village.

2.0
2.1

PROPOSAL
This is a reserved matters application for details of appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale following the approval of outline planning application P16/S4062/O in 2017.
The submission also follows pre-application advise in respect of layout and
appearance. Plans are attached as Appendix B. Condition 6) attached to the outline
planning permission, specified the following details to be included in the reserved
matters application:
i) A layout which provides an appropriate market housing mix;
ii) Samples of all materials to be used in the external construction and finishes of the
development;
iii) A maintenance schedule and a long term management plan for any soft landscaping
works;
iv) Details of cycle parking facilities.

2.2

Application P16/S4062/O was allowed at appeal and granted outline planning
permission for the erection of up to 120 residential dwellings and space for a
community facility (Use Class D1/D2) with associated highways, landscaping and open
space. The detailed means of access off the B480 was permitted under this outline.
The outline planning permission was also subject to a Section 106 legal agreement to
secure, inter alia, affordable housing; public open space and public transport
improvements.

Page 23

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

2.3

The application proposes the following mix:
1 bed
2 bed
3 bed
4 bed
TOTAL

Market
0
22
28
22
72

Affordable
10
28
10
0
48

TOTAL
10
50
38
22
120

3.0

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Full responses can be found on the Council’s website but are summarised below.

3.1

Chalgrove Parish Council – Original Plans - Object until conditions are forthcoming.
Development of this site must address all the points of concern relating to:
 Access and safety of pedestrians
 Future flood risk to the village
 Sewerage
 Archaeological finds
 Play equipment
 Ecology
 Education
 Health
 Maintenace of the site
The housing designs are welcomed along with the bird boxes. Some concern over lack
of pavements and need to pepperpot the affordable housing.
Revised Plans – Continue to have concerns relating to:
 Access and pedestrian safety
 Flood Risk
 Archaeology
 Environment and Ecology
 Highways
 Education
 Health
 Lack of sufficient buffer
The Parsih Council still has many reservations about the development and continue to
object until conditions are forthcoming.
Oxfordshire County Council Transport – No objection to amended plans subject to
conditions.
Oxfordshire County Council Archaeology – No objection
Forestry Officer – The amended layout is an improvement to the original scheme and
is now considered to be acceptable.
Urban Design Officer - Support this application based on the information submitted
against its development context as the illustrative design mitigates initial design
concerns raised.
Drainage – No objection to drainage strategy
Housing Development – No objection.

Page 24

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

Landscape Architect – Now satisfied with revised scheme.
Waste Management Officer – Tracking information for waste collection vehicle is
adequate.
Countryside Officer - Overall, provided the proposed ecological enhancements are
delivered on site the scheme should create a small net gain in biodiversity value.
Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group – Object until able to confrim if the
existing GP services could support the extra patient numbers and what contribution
would be made to the local heath econoimy by the developers.
Local Residents - 16 letters have been received raising the following concerns:
 Objection to principle of development
 Infrastructure issues need to be sorted
 Safe footpath provision required
 Loss of privacy
 Loss of light
 Corridor separating development to the west should be widened
 Maintenance of drainage ditch required
 Flooding concerns
 Noise nuisance
 Location of play facilities will exacerbate noise concerns and worry of anti-social
behaviour
 Houses will be too intrusive to houses in Chiltern Close
 Extra houses not needed
 Schools are full
 Traffic problems
 Amenity concerns
 Too much green space
 Boundary treatment inadequate
 Flood alleviation measures are a concern
 Pedestrian route is dangerous
 Inadequate street lighting
 More starter homes needed for local people
 Sewerage problems exacerbated
 Affordable housing should be pepper-potted
 Play equipment inadequate
Amended Plans – 2 local residents:
 Still have concerns relating to pedestrian safety on Monument Road
 Amended plans fail to address previous commnmets raised
Chalgove Neighbourhood Development Plan – Following concerns in summary:
 Dwelling mix, design and parking provision is in general agreement but some
aprking provision is a concern
 Affordable housing is not sufficiently pepper-potted
 Access and safety concerns
 Flood Risk
 Sewerage capasity concerns

Page 25

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018








Buffer to existing properties should be widened
Play areas – less wood to be used. LAP inadequate
Ecology and biodiversity – other enhancements should be proposed
Archaeology – Full survey required
Education – OCC should confirm that there is adequate provision
Health – OCCG object.

4.0
4.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P16/S4062/O - Refused (04/05/2017) - Appeal allowed (06/10/2017)
Outline planning application for the erection of up to 120 residential dwellings and
space for a community facility (Use Class D1/D2) with associated highways,
landscaping and open space, with all matters reserved except access.

5.0
5.1

POLICY & GUIDANCE
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

5.2

National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

5.3

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) Policies 2027
CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSB1 - Conservation and improvement of biodiversity
CSC1 - Delivery and contingency
CSEN1 - Landscape protection
CSEN3 - Historic environment
CSG1 - Green infrastructure
CSH1 - Amount and distribution of housing
CSH2 - Housing density
CSH3 - Affordable housing
CSH4 - Meeting housing needs
CSI1 - Infrastructure provision
CSM1 - Transport
CSM2 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
CSQ3 - Design
CSQ4 - Design briefs for greenfield neighbourhoods and major development sites
CSR1 - Housing in villages
CSR3 - Community facilities and rural transport
CSS1 - The Overall Strategy

5.4

South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) 2011 saved policies
C4 - Landscape setting of settlements
C6 - Maintain & enhance biodiversity
C8 - Adverse affect on protected species
C9 - Loss of landscape features
CF2 - Provision of additional community facilities
CON12 - Archaeological field evaluation
CON13 - Archaeological investigation recording & publication
D1 - Principles of good design
D3 – Outdoor amenity area
D4 – Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
EP1 - Adverse affect on people and environment
EP2 - Adverse affect by noise or vibration
EP4 - Impact on water resources
EP6 - Sustainable drainage
G2 - Protect district from adverse development

Page 26

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

G3
G4
H4
R2
R6
R8
T1
T7

-

Development well served by facilities and transport
Protection of Countryside
Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
Provision of play areas on new housing development
Public open space in new residential development
Protection of existing public right of way
Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
Protection and improvement to footpath and highway network

5.5

Emerging South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2032
The council is preparing a new Local Plan, which will set out how development will be
planned and delivered across South Oxfordshire to 2032. In relation to housing growth
within our villages, our Plan proposes to deliver homes through the Neighbourhood
Plan process.

5.6

Chalgrove Neighbourhood Plan (CNP)
The Examiner’s report is expected later this month following a further six week
consultation period on proposed revisions to the NP and the environment report.
This site is identified as a housing allocation site for up to 120 homes.

5.7

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016

6.0
6.1

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The principle of the development and means of access were established under outline
planning permission P16/S4062/O. The main considerations in relation to this reserved
matters application are therefore:
1. Layout
2. Scale
3. Appearance
4. Landscaping

6.2

6.3

Layout
The proposed layout has evolved through the design process in response to site
constraints, pre-application discussions and other feedback. It has also evolved from
the illustrative layout plan shown at outline stage. Existing features of importance
including the tree belt on the eastern boundary, the ditch along the western boundary
and the alignment and accessibility of the existing public footpath along the southern
boundary are to be maintained. The layout proposes a central main street with
frontage development with access to streets to the east and west and a network of
open spaces and play areas.
The layout now ensures that the open space/play areas are located more centrally
(LEAP) to provide an attractive entrance feature for the site and improved levels of
visual amenity, with views towards the open space when entering the site from B480.
This open space is framed by development to create a good quality amenity for future
residents. The NEAP is located towards the south west of the site, in an area with good
quality natural surveillance and accessibility to residents within the site as well as to the
wider village by the public footpath. Local residents and the Parish Council have raised
concerns that the proposed play areas should be moved further away from existing
properties. The closest play area is the LAP for which The Fields in Trust guidance on
outdoor sport and play recommends a minimum buffer of 5 meters from the activity
zone to the boundary of the nearest dwellings. In this case the LAP is located over 8
meters from the boundary of the nearest existing property to the west. The NEAP to
the south west of the site has a minimum distance of 30m in accordance with the
guidance. The play areas have been improved to offer more opportunities for less able-

Page 27

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

bodied children.
6.4

Whilst development has been moved closer to the B480, there is still a strong
landscape buffer to ensure sufficient space is maintained to provide a well landscaped
frontage to the site and an attractive entrance to the village. Further improvements
have been made to the layout to secure additional landscaping.

6.5

Revised plans have been submitted seeking to address concerns raised by OCC
(Transport) on safety grounds to bring the layout up to adoptable standard and to show
internal visibility splays. The amended plans include the removal of previously shown
build-outs in the road to improve pedestrian movements and avoid areas where conflict
may have arisen. The layout has now been subject to a Stage 1 Road Safety Audit that
confirms that the layout is safe for pedestrians and roads users. The layout has also
been amended so that the attenuation basin avoids the legal route of the public right of
way to the south of the site. Further revisions have been made to provide adequate
visibility splays and swept paths for refuse vehicles. OCC are satisfied with the
amended scheme.

6.6

The layout responds to the existing building lines of development to the west and
allows for front access to properties fronting the B480. Whilst concerns have been
raised in respect of overlooking and loss of privacy and for an increase to the width of
the buffer to the west of the site, the distances and garden sizes comply with Council
policy. Further increasing the buffer would also act as a physical divide which would fail
to help integrate the new development with the existing settlement and would not
accord with policies seeking to create safe, inclusive and accessible places.

6.7

In relation to the layout of the affordable units, the council’s housing development
officer has reviewed the Housing Mix & Affordable Housing Statement and is satisfied
that the application meets the council’s requirements as per the S106 agreement
attached to the outline planning permission. The distribution of aﬀordable housing and
cluster sizing was reviewed, following pre-application advice to provide an improved
distribution across the site.

6.8

The Urban Design Officer considers that the amendments have satisfied or mitigated
the issues raised throughout the design process including landscaping and design
details as discussed in more detail below.

6.9

Scale
In terms of scale, the proposed homes would predominantly be two stories in height
with a small number of 1.5 storey dwellings and I consider that this to be appropriate to
the character of the local area and the position of the site on the edge of the village.

6.10 With regards to the scale of the individual homes, the proposal would provide
affordable homes in a mix that has been agreed by the council’s housing team and
would be of a size that would meet housing needs. Whilst the proposed market mix
would not precisely accord with the mix in the SHMA, it would not veer away
significantly from what is recommended. The development would provide a range of
house sizes and would be acceptable.
6.11 The market housing mix from the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and
the application proposal are summarised in the table below:
Market homes
SHMA
Application proposal

1 bed
6%
0%

2 bed
27%
30.5%

3 bed
43%
39%

4+ bed
24%
30.5%

Page 28

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

Appearance
6.12 The proposed homes would generally be traditional in appearance and in keeping with
the local vernacular. The overall design approach proposes a range of dwelling styles
and types for both the affordable and market housing. Amendments have been made
to some of the affordable housing units to ensure they are not distinguishable as
affordable from the market housing whist ensuring a vernacular which is in character
with the architectural style within Chalgrove. The design of the 1BH house types has
been amended to include the use of gables and has improved fenestration detailing to
add interest and provide an enhanced appearance as shown below. The design of
other plots has also been amended to add gable features to add interest in the street
scene.

Page 29

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

6.13 The architectural detailing on site, with the use of some chimneys, porches, brick
quoins and brick string courses are also characteristic of development in the village,
from both traditional and more modern periods. The use of white uPVC fascia boards
has been reduced with black fascia boards to be used on the painted brick plots to add
variety and interest to the development. Plain verge and eaves detailing has been
requested for the more prominent plots fronting onto the main B480. The 1.5 storey
dwellings have dormers, siting low in the roof. A materials schedule has been submitted
with the dwellings being predominantly brick with painted brick used for key and feature
buildings and to add interest in the street scene, which again is characteristic of the
village.
6.14 A variety of boundary treatments would be provided and these would be suited to their
specific positions. In my opinion the spaces between buildings would be sufficient to
ensure that the development would not appear cramped or contrived. Overall, I am
satisfied that the appearance of the development would be acceptable.
Landscaping
6.15 The layout takes into consideration the small number of existing trees growing around
the perimeters of the site. The layout has been amended to provide improved
landscaping, including enhanced tree planting within the open space adjacent to the
LEAP. A focal tree is proposed at the southern end of the central road to add visual
interest and additional street planting is proposed as well as improved use of hedgerow
planting generally on-site to further enhance the landscaped character of the site.
6.16 Further revisions have been made to the proposed soft landscaping scheme to include
additional tree planting to the attenuation basin area at the southern end of the site and
within front gardens along the main access road to provide an improved landscaped
appearance. The Council’s Landscape Architect and Forestry Officer are now satisfied
with the amended scheme.
Other matters
6.17 The Parish Council have raised a number of concerns, but most relate to matters
addressed when considering whether the principle of development was acceptable on
Page 30

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee - 21 November 2018

the site. This application solely relates to consideration of the reserved matters which,
as set out above, relate to matters of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping. In
respect of these matters, the Parish Council is not fully pleased with the range of play
equipment and considers that the LAP has very little play value for the under 6 year
olds. The proposed play areas however, will provide a substantial amount of new play
provision in the form of a Neighbourhood Equipped Area for Play (NEAP), a Locally
Equipped Area for Play (LEAP) and Local Area for Play (LAP). Using a range of both
traditional steel and timber play equipment to reﬂect the setting of the site, the play
schemes provide a number of play experiences for a wide range of age groups and
accords with guidance for outdoor sport and play (Fields in Trust).
7.0
7.1

CONCLUSION
The principle of the development has already been established through the grant of
outline planning permission on appeal. The main access arrangements have also been
approved under the outline consent. The only matters to be considered under this
application relate to the details of the development in terms of appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale.

7.2

The layout would generally reflect the principles of the outline consent and would
deliver the affordable units secured under the outline permission. The detailed layout
would be acceptable in terms of neighbour impact and the development would provide
suitable living conditions for future residents. The amended landscaping scheme would
be effective in screening and softening the development. The overall appearance and
detailing of the development would create a place that would be in keeping with the
character of the local area.

7.3

I recommend that reserved matters approval is granted as the layout, scale,
appearance and landscaping of the development are acceptable and the proposal
complies with the relevant Development Plan Policies.

8.0
8.1

RECOMMENDATION
That reserved matters approval for P18/S1853/RM be granted subject to the
following conditions:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Author:
Contact No:
Email:

Development in accordance with approved plans.
No garage conversion into accommodation.
Parking and manoeuvring areas retained.
Roads and footpaths prior to occupation.
Joan Desmond
01235 422600
planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

R D

N
N

C

L

H

I

D

D

E

L

U

Y

S

A

A

R

W

E

I X

N C E

P E N N

Appendix A

Y

L A

N

E

A

I

R

F

A
X
R
O

S

Y

D

C

A

48

0

O

R

A

G

D

O

B

N

P E R T
M

R

E

L

F

M

A

O

R

N

M

U

R O A D

C

U

T

R

A

Rev. Description

Date

Dra

in

Drawn

E

Grange

Telephone 0870 336 4200
Fax 01256 708356
www.millerhomes.co.uk

R

O A D

Miller Homes (Southern) Ltd
Unit 3, Faraday Office Park
Rankine Road
Basingstoke, RG24 8QB

Dra
in

The

K

E

N

Project Title

Fall

Land East of Chalgrove,
Chalgrove, Oxfordshire

Agenda Item 9

B

R

R

I C

Path

Drawing Title

Site Location Plan
FB

Path

Page 33

Scale

1:2500

Drawn By

KIJ
Date

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2017. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Job No.

817097
Original Sheet Size A3

Checked By

15.05.18
Drawing No.

P-00

Date

Authorised By

PF
-

Date

15.05.18
Revision

-

Appendix B

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL
OFFICER

P18/S2953/O
OUTLINE
5.9.2018
Beckley
John Walsh
Mrs Fiona Bonney
The Beeches, Woodperry Road, Beckley, OX3 9UZ
Outline application for one detached dwellinghouse
Joan Desmond

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
This application is referred to the Planning Committee as a formal call-in has been
made by Councillor John Walsh

1.2

The site comprises paddock/grazing land and measures approximately 0.1ha in area
and lies on the east side of a track which extends off Woodperry Road View (OS
extract attached as Appendix 1). The site is bounded by open land (paddock) to the
north and east. Woodperry Road adjoins the site to the west and the residential
property known as ‘Hollybush House’ adjoins the site to the south.

1.3

The sites lies with the Oxford Green belt.

2.0
2.1

PROPOSAL
The application is an outline application for the erection of a detached dwelling house
with all matters reserved apart from access and layout. Access is proposed via an
existing field gate off Woodperry Road. The site is bordered by hedgerows and trees
on three sides. Previous appeal decisions on this site have concluded that the site
does not lie within the physical limits of the village.

2.2

Reduced copies of some of the submitted plans are attached at Appendix 2. Full
copies of the plans and consultation responses are available for inspection on the
council’s website at www.southoxon.gov.uk

3.0
3.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Beckley Parish Council – Fully support application as it is an appropriate place for an
additional house in the village.
Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No Objection subject to
conditions.
Neighbour – Support application in principle but comments that the development should
be of a similar scale to surrounding development; visilbilty is not adquate for any
increase in traffic density and permitted development rights should be removed.

4.0
4.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P00/N0820 - Refused (14/03/2001) - Appeal dismissed (04/09/2001)
Erection of a single dwelling. (As amplified by additional plan accompanying agent's
letter dated 23 February 2001).
P83/N0010/O - Refused (16/02/1983) - Appeal dismissed (08/12/1983)
ERECTION OF DETACHED BUNGALOW AND GARAGE.

Page 41

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

P77/N0359/O - Refused (18/08/1977) - Appeal dismissed (27/06/1978)
DEMOLITION OF RAILWAY CARRIAGE AND ERECTION OF A BUNGALOW.
P72/M1431 - Refused (17/01/1973)
Demolition of converted railway carriage and erection of two detached dwellinghouses
and garages
5.0
5.1

POLICY & GUIDANCE
National Planning Policy Framework & National Planning Practice Guidance

5.2

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) policies
CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSS1 - The Overall Strategy
CSEN1 - Landscape protection
CSEN2 - Green Belt protection
CSM1 - Transport
CSQ3 - Design
CSR1 - Housing in villages

5.3

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) policies
H4 - Housing sites in towns and larger villages
G2 - Protect district from adverse development
G4 - Protection of Countryside
GB4 - Openness of Green Belt maintained
T1 - Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
C8 - Adverse affect on protected species
C9 - Loss of landscape features
D1 - Principles of good design
D10 - Waste Management

5.4

Emerging South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2033
The Council is preparing a new Local Plan, which will set out how development will be
planned and delivered across South Oxfordshire to 2033. The overall strategy in draft
policy STRAT1 is to focus major new development in the Science Vale and other
strategic allocations; support and enhance the economic and social dependencies
between towns and villages; support the roles of Henley-on Thames, Thame and
Wallingford; support and enhance the roles of the larger villages; allow limited housing
and employment development at smaller and other villages (Beckley); protect and
enhance the countryside by ensuring that any change relates to very specific needs;
and support and enhance the historic environment.

5.5

Beckley Neighbourhood Plan
Paragraph 48 of the NPPF allows for weight to be given to relevant policies in emerging
plans, unless other material considerations indicate otherwise, and only subject to the
stage of preparation of the plan, the extent of unresolved objections and the degree of
consistency of the relevant emerging policies with the NPPF.

5.6

The Beckley Parish Council ran a consultation, which concluded on 24 February 2018,
inviting the local community and statutory consultees for their comments on their draft
neighbourhood plan (NP). The comments received are being reviewed, before the plan
is submitted to the district council for a further round of consultation followed by the
Independent Examination. The neighbourhood plan has limited weight at this stage.

5.7

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016

Page 42

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

6.0
6.1

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main planning considerations in the determination of this application are
 Whether the principle of development is acceptable
 Whether the proposal is inappropriate development within the Green Belt
 Harm on the openness and visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt
 Impact on the character and appearance of the area
 Impact on neighbours
 Highway implications
 Other material considerations

6.2

Principle of the development
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the local planning authority shall
have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as material to the
application, and to any other material considerations. Development which is not in
accordance with an up-to-date development plan should be refused unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

6.3

Green Belt Issues
The site lies within the Oxford Green Belt. The National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open – the most
important attribute of Green Belts is their openness.

6.4

The Green Belt serves five purposes:
• to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;
• to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
• to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
• to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
• to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and
other urban land.

6.5

It is important to note that whilst the Green Belt contains areas of attractive
landscape, the quality of the landscape is not relevant to the inclusion of land in the
Green Belt or its continued protection. It is the openness of land that is important.

6.6

To protect openness there is a general presumption against inappropriate
development. Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt.
New buildings in the Green Belt are not appropriate unless for the following
Purposes:
• buildings for agriculture and forestry;
• provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation and for
cemeteries, as long as it preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does
not conflict with the purposes of including land within it;
• the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building;
• the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use
and not materially larger than the one it replaces;
• limited infilling in villages, and limited affordable housing for local community
needs under policies set out in the Local Plan; or

Page 43

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

• limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously
developed sites (brownfield land), whether redundant or in continuing use
(excluding temporary buildings), which would not have a greater impact on the
openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within it than the existing
development.
6.7

Policy CSR1 of the Core Strategy allows for new housing in the settlements in the
district. Beckley is identified as a “smaller” village. For the smaller villages this will
amount to infill developments on sites of up to 0.2 hectares (the site measures some
0.1 ha). Infill development is defined as being the filling in of a small gap in an
otherwise built up frontage or on other sites within settlements where the site is closely
surrounded by buildings. CSR1 and CSEN2 also make reference to respecting Green
Belt designations.

6.8

The NPPF says that where villages are included within the Green Belt, it has to be
because they too contribute to the openness (para 140). A reasonable interpretation is
that there are features in the character of the village (open spaces) that make that
contribution in particular.

6.9

The filling of open spaces within these green belt villages would undeniably have some
impact on openness but where this harm is limited, infilling can be acceptable. These
are the balanced judgements CSEN2 is seeking.

6.10 Previous appeal decisions for residential development on this site (see history above)
have concluded that the site does not lie within the physical limits of the village. In the
most recent appeal in 2001, the Inspector noted that ‘it is possible to argue that the site
does not lie in open countryside’ but concluded that it was not contained within the
built-up form of the village but was located within a pocket of scattered development,
somewhat divorced from the ribbon of housing on Woodperry Road which itself was
physically separate from the core of the village. Whilst the Parish Council support the
application on the grounds that it is an appropriate place for a dwelling as it lies within
the ‘Defined village’ as identified in the draft Neighbourhood Plan, it does not form a
small gap in an otherwise built-up frontage and is not closely surrounded by other
buildings. The site adjoins open fields on two sides. This proposed development does
not therefore meet the definition of infill and is contrary to Policy CSR1. The
development comprises inappropriate development in the green belt and consideration
must be given as to whether the harm, by reason of inappropriateness and any other
harm is clearly outweighed by other considerations so as to amount to very special
circumstances necessary to justify the development. No such circumstances have been
put forward by the applicant.
6.11 Harm on the openness and visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt
The site has the appearance and character that is open and undeveloped. Officers
consider that this open area of land makes a positive contribution to the openness and
visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt. The proposed development would increase the
amount of built form on the site which although may be partially screened by trees and
other vegetation, would still adversely affect the openness of the green belt and its
visual amenity in conflict with Policy GB4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP).
6.12 Impact on the character and appearance of the area
Policies C4, G2 and G4 of the SOLP are relevant to the proposed development. These
policies seek to ensure that any attractive landscape settings of settlements are not
harmed by development and that the countryside is protected for its own sake. The site
comprises paddock/grazing land with associated structures located on adjoining land to
the east. As already identified, the site has the appearance and character that is open

Page 44

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

and undeveloped. As noted by the previous appeal Inspector the site ‘unquestionably
forms an integral part of the countryside beyond and, as such, makes a significant
contribution to the rural character of the area’. The development would consolidate the
existing scatter of development along this road.
6.13 The erection of a new dwelling on this site with its associated residential paraphernalia
would be harmful to the rural character and appearance of the site in conflict with
Development Plan polices and the NPPF.
6.14 Neighbour Impact
The Council’s policies and guidance seeks to ensure that new dwellings are
considerate to neighbours by way of ensuring that the development does not intrude
upon a neighbour’s privacy, does not overshadow, obstruct daylight or have an
oppressive or overbearing impact, which would be harmful to the amenity of occupiers
living in neighbouring properties. Policy H4 (iv) seeks to ensure that new residential
development does not amount to any overriding amenity harm.
6.15 As this is an outline application no details of the proposed dwellings have been
submitted but the layout of the proposed dwelling is unreserved. The layout plan
indicates the siting of the proposed building centrally on the plot. The site is
surrounded by open fields on two sides and adjoins Woodperry road to the west. The
nearest property is ‘Hollybush House’ to the south which is separated by a strong field
boundary and is located some distance from the boundary. As such it is not considered
that there would be any significant impact on neighbour amenity.
6.16 Impact on local highway
The council’s policies and guidance seek to ensure that in determining planning
applications, the council should, in consultation with the local highway authority, ensure
that new developments, including but not exclusively relating to the provision of
housing, are designed to a standard that ensures a safe and attractive environment and
does not result in an unacceptable level of traffic on the local highway network or have
a detrimental impact on the amenities and environment of the area. The NPPF advises
that safe and suitable access to the site should be achieved for all users.
6.17 The Highway Liaison Officer considers that the proposed development is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the highway network and has raised no objection subject
to conditions to ensure highway safety.
6.18 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
CIL is a planning charge that local authorities can implement to help deliver
infrastructure and to support the development of their area and is primarily calculated
on the increase in footprint created as a result of the development.
In this case CIL is liable as the proposal involves the creation of a new dwelling.
7.0
7.1

CONCLUSION
The proposal would be inappropriate development in the green belt. According to the
NPPF this is, by definition, harmful and substantial weight has to be given to that harm.
Furthermore the openness of the green belt would be harmed and the proposed
development would be harmful to the rural character and appearance of the area in
conflict with the NPPF and policies CSEN1, CSEN2 and CSR1 of the SOCS and
policies GB4, G2, G4, C4 of the SOLP.

Page 45

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

8.0
8.1

RECOMMENDATION
To refuse planning permission for the following reasons:
1. The proposal would be inappropriate development in the green belt
which according to the National Planning Policy Framework is, by
definition harmful to the openness of the green belt and substantial
weight has to be given to that harm. No very special circumstances
have been provided with this application which would outweigh this
harm. As such it is not acceptable in principle and is contrary to
advice set out in the Framework.
2. The Development Plan identifies appropriate locations for new
dwellings in the district. New dwellings within the Green Belt will not
be allowed unless the development falls within strictly defined criteria.
Beckley is one of the villages within the district where the principle of
infill development is acceptable. However, the site lies outside the
village of Beckley in an isolated scatter of development. The site does
not constitute infill development and is therefore considered as
inappropriate development to the detriment of the openness and
visual amenity of the Oxford Green Belt. As such, the proposal is
contrary to policies CSR1 and CSEN2 of the South Oxfordshire Core
Strategy 2027, Policy GB4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan and the
guidance set out within the National Planning Policy Framework 2018.
3. The proposed development would be harmful to the rural character
and appearance of the area in conflict with Policy CSEN1 of the South
Oxfordshire Core Strategy, 2012, and saved policies C4, G2 and G4 of
the South Oxfordshire Local Plan, 2011.

Author:
Contact No:
Email:

Joan Desmond
01235 422600
planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 46

Appendix 1

Agenda Item 10

Page 47

Appendix 2
DP

ER

RY

RO

AD

Rivend
ell
Pond V
iew

High W
inds

Baross

Hillview

Baytre
e
House

a

ad
Chipste

Northw

ays

Fairwin

ds

OO

14

210900

RY R
OAD

Spring

field

Appletr
e
House e

210978

W

DPER

Fieldfare

WOO

The Grange

Hollybush House

210800
Lombardy

Bradleys
210700
Sycamore
Lodge
5

456879

456800

456700

456600

456579

210678

Site boundary

Revision
N
P1

Fiona Bonney
The Beeches

11/01/18 First issue
19 benbow avenue
eastbourne
east sussex
bn23 6eb
t:
e:
w:

+44 7878 439595
info@mountainfold.uk
www.mountainfold.uk

Job / Drawing no.

005/L/001

SITE LOCATION PLAN

Revision
Scale 1:1250 @ A3
Date
Jan 2018
Drawn MB
All dimensions to be checked on site
Do not scale drawings for construction

0

50

P1
Status

PreliminaryPage 48

Existing fence line
Existing beech trees

Existing permanent
structure
Existing temporary
structure

Existing access

WOODPERRY
ROAD
Revision
NOTES
P1

N

Fiona Bonney
The Beeches

11/01/18 First issue

Page 49

- Extent and location of trees on site as drawn is indicative only

19 benbow avenue
eastbourne
east sussex
bn23 6eb
t:
e:
w:

+44 7878 439595
info@mountainfold.uk
www.mountainfold.uk

Job / Drawing no.

005/L/002

EXISTING SITE PLAN

Revision
Scale 1:250 @ A3
Date
Jan 2018
Drawn MB
All dimensions to be checked on site
Do not scale drawings for construction

0

10

P1
Status

Preliminary

Proposed new dwelling
Existing fence line
Existing beech trees

Exist
ing h
along edge and
fe
site b
ound nce
ary

Existing permanent
structure removed
Existing temporary
structure removed

5925

32100

16925

Existing and
proposed
access

ROAD

6217
House aligned with
adjacent property

WOODPERRY

Existing
hedge a
nd fenc
along s
e
ite boun
dary

11673

Exist
ing h
along edge an
df
site b
ound ence
ary

Revision
N
P1

Fiona Bonney
The Beeches

11/01/18 First issue

Page 50

19 benbow avenue
eastbourne
east sussex
bn23 6eb
t:
e:
w:

+44 7878 439595
info@mountainfold.uk
www.mountainfold.uk

Job / Drawing no.

005/L/010

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Revision
Scale 1:250 @ A3
Date
Jan 2018
Drawn MB
All dimensions to be checked on site
Do not scale drawings for construction

0

10

P1
Status

Preliminary

Agenda Item 11
South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBER
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL
OFFICER

P18/S1259/FUL
FULL APPLICATION
19.4.2018
WATLINGTON
Anna Badcock
Mason
10 Hill Road (The Rectory), Watlington, OX49 5AD
Erection of a detached, two storey dwelling with
associated parking and landscaping.(as amended
by drawings received 4 July 2018).
Victoria Clarke

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
The application is referred to the Planning Committee because Watlington Parish
Council objects to the proposal. Officers recommend that planning permission should
be granted.

1.2

The application site is shown on the map attached at Appendix A. The site is located
within the built-up limits of Watlington and is currently part of the residential garden of
10 Hill Road (The Rectory), a detached dwelling which sits on a corner plot where Hill
Road meets Spring Lane.

1.3

The application site is bounded by Hill Road to the north east where the boundary
consists mostly of mature mixed vegetation set behind a grassed highway verge and
pavement. There is fencing and mature vegetation along the south east and south
west boundaries of the site with neighbouring residential gardens, and the north west
boundary of the application site dissects the lawn / garden of The Rectory. The car
park to The Carriers Arms public house sits across Hill Road immediately opposite the
site.

1.4

The site does not fall within any areas of special designation, but the boundary of
Watlington Conservation Area runs along the opposite side of Hill Road and Spring
Lane, to the north and west of the site. The boundary of the Chilterns Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty lies approximately 150 metres to the east of the
application site.

2.0
2.1

PROPOSAL
The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two-storey detached
dwelling, the formation of a vehicular access onto Hill Road, and associated parking
and landscaping.

2.2

The proposed dwelling would be traditional in appearance with a pitched roof. The
walls of the dwelling would be finished in red brick with light render and the roof in plain
tiles. It would have an integrated garage, and parking and turning space is proposed to
the front of the house.

2.3

A copy of the plans associated with the application are attached as Appendix B and
other documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s
website, www.southoxon.gov.uk.

Page 51

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

3.0
3.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Watlington Parish Council
First consultation
Object:
 Overdevelopment of the site
 Overwhelming impact on an important key building in the town which stands at
the edge of the conservation area
Amended plans consultation
Object:
 Scale and design are critical
 Proposal detracts from setting of the Rectory
 Too big for the site
 Access directly opposite car park entrance
 Views from conservation area
 Watlington NDP housing survey showed limited need for 5 bed houses
compared to 3 or 4 bed

3.2

Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council)
First consultation and amended plans consultation
No strong views. The following conditions are recommended:
 General tree protection condition
 Landscaping condition

3.3

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council)
First consultation and amended plans consultation
No strong views. The following conditions are recommended:
 New vehicular access to be constructed to OCC specification
 Provision of pedestrian vision splays
 Provision of unobstructed vehicular vision splays in accordance with plan
 Parking and manoeuvring areas to be provided, retained and SuDS compliant
 Retain garage for parking
 No surface water drainage onto the highway

3.4

Neighbours
First consultation
Four letters of comment raising the following issues have been received:
 Overlooking of adjacent gardens due to the position and orientation of
proposed dwelling
 Loss of light and overshadowing because proposed dwelling will extend
approximately 3 metres behind the rear of existing dwellings
 Overdevelopment / dwelling very large for the plot and in comparison to
neighbouring dwellings
 Proximity to neighbouring dwellings (2 metre gap)
 Height of proposed dwelling matches The Rectory but is greater than the
adjacent dwelling (12 Hill Road)
 Overwhelming impact on The Rectory
 Proposed loss of trees and bushes which are attractive, important to character
of the area and support birds – should consider a shared vehicular access to
retain some trees and vegetation
 Trees felled prior to submission of application
 Lack of site survey and plans appear inaccurate

Page 52

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018



Highway safety: increased number of accesses close to sharp bend in road
where Hill Road meets Spring Lane (proposed access, existing access to The
Rectory, and heavily used pub car park access opposite the proposed access
which is also used by coaches for school drop off and pick up). Hill Road is
often used as overflow parking for the town when the nearby town car park is
full. A shared vehicular access with The Rectory would be better.

Amended plans consultation
Two letters of comment raising the following issues have been received:
 Reduction to a single garage seems inappropriate for a five bedroom house
 Insufficient parking will result in parking on the road which will exacerbate
problems for HGVs delivering to the pub car park and increase safety risk
particulary with term-time transit of school children from this point on Hill Road
 Should consider a shared vehicular access to avoid such a significant loss of
trees and vegetation
4.0
4.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
None

5.0
5.1

POLICY & GUIDANCE
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Policy Framework Planning Practice Guidance

5.2

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS) 2027
CSS1 - The Overall Strategy
CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSQ3 – Design
CSEN3 – Historic environment
CSR1 - Housing in villages
CSH2 - Housing density
CSQ2 - Sustainable design and construction
CSM1 - Transport

5.3

South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) 2011 saved policies
C9 - Loss of landscape features
CON 7 – Conservation areas
D1 - Principles of good design
D2 - Safe and secure parking for vehicles and cycles
D3 - Outdoor amenity area
D4 - Reasonable level of privacy for occupiers
D10 - Waste Management
EP6 - Sustainable drainage
G2 - Protect district from adverse development
G5 - Best use of land/buildings in built up areas
H4 - Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1 - Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2 - Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4

South Oxfordshire Design Guide (SODG) 2016
Part 2, section 3 - Parking
Part 2, section 7 - Buildings and plots
Part 3 (Technical documents), section 6 – Householder extensions and outbuildings

5.5

Watlington Neighbourhood Plan 2018 (WNP)
P1 - Protect and enhance character and historic setting of town
Page 53

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

P2 - Transport
P3 - Conserve and enhance the natural environment
P5 - New housing development
6.0
6.1

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main issues to be considered are:
1. The principle of the development
2. The impact on the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area
3. The impact on neighbouring properties
4. The impact on the highway

6.2

The principle
The site is located within the built-up limits of Watlington. The proposed development
would be sited between two existing dwellings and would fill a small gap in an otherwise
built-up frontage. The proposal therefore meets the definition of infill development and
is acceptable in principle in accordance with SOCS Policy CSR1 and WNP Policy P5.

6.3

Character and appearance
Hill Road is predominantly characterised by two-storey detached dwellings on relatively
large plots.

6.4

At the request of officers, the scale of the proposed dwelling has been reduced to
produce a larger gap between the proposed and existing dwellings and the roof ridge
height has been lowered to match the neighbouring dwelling at 12 Hill Road.

6.5

The proposed dwelling would be traditional in appearance with a dual pitched roof and
finished with red brick and render walls and plain tiles on the roof. Officers consider the
proposed two-storey dwelling would reflect the scale and character of other
development in the neighbourhood and would relate well to the established street
scene. Its form and materials would be in keeping with the surrounding area, and it
would not harm the character and appearance of the nearby conservation area.

6.6

The trees on and adjacent to this site are not protected by a tree preservation order or
a conservation area. The only remaining significant trees on the site are those growing
along the south-western boundary with 36 Spring Lane. The proposed dwelling is far
enough away from these trees and there is sufficient space for tree protection
measures to be put in place to prevent them from being damaged by the construction
process.

6.7

Local residents have noted that the character of the site has already been altered due
to the removal of some trees. The proposal would result in the loss of some additional
vegetation from the frontage of the site to form the vehicular access, however, officers
consider that this would not be significantly harmful to the character of the site or the
surrounding area. In addition, a landscaping condition can be attached to secure
planting to help soften the impact of the development, conserve and enhance the
natural environment and mitigate for the loss of the mature sycamore tree previously
felled to create space for the highway access.

6.8

Impact on neighbours
The amended plans have addressed concerns raised by officers in relation to the
impact on the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring properties. The proposed

Page 54

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

development would be sited a sufficient distance from neighbouring properties to avoid
harm to neighbours by way of loss of light, privacy or outlook.
6.9

Impact on the highway
The addition of a new dwelling and its associated access is unlikely to have a
significant adverse impact on the highway network. The Local Highway Liaison Officer
has considered the issues raised by local residents in relation to the addition of an
access on Hill Road in proximity to the bend in the road and other existing accesses,
and the use of the public house car park. He has no objection to the proposal subject
to conditions.

6.10 Community Infrastructure Levy
The proposed development is CIL liable at a charge of £150 per square metre (index
linked). As there is a made neighbourhood plan, 25% of the funds collected by CIL
from the proposed development would be passed to Watlington Parish Council.
7.0
7.1

CONCLUSION
Planning permission should be granted. The principle of the development is
considered acceptable and, subject to conditions, the proposal would not be harmful to
the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area, the amenity of
neighbouring occupiers or the local highway.

8.0
8.1

RECOMMENDATION
To grant planning permission subject to the following planning conditions:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Commencement of development within three years.
Development to be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
Sample materials (walls and roof) to be agreed prior to their use.
New vehicular access to Oxfordshire County Council specificaiton to be
provided prior to first occupation.
5. Pedestrian vision splays to be provided prior to first occupation.
6. Vehicular vision splays to be provided in accordance with plan.
7. Turning area and car parking to be provided prior to first occupation.
8. No garage conversion into accommodation.
9. Landscaping scheme to be agreed prior to commencement of
development.
10. Tree protection details to be agreed prior to commencement of
development.
11. Details of surface water drainage works to be agreed prior to
commencement of development.
12. Details of foul drainage works to be agreed prior to commencment of
development.
Informatives:
 No surface water drainage onto highway.
 Development is liable for Community Infrastructure Levy.
Author:
Victoria Clarke
Contact No: 01235 422600
Email:
planning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Agenda Item 11

Page 57

Appendix B

HIL

LR

OA
D

THE
CARRIERS
ARMS
P/H

THE
CARRIERS
ARMS
CAR PARK

HIL
L

RO

AD

NO.10

GA

RA

GE

SP

RIN
G

LA

NE

NO.12

NO.36

SP

RIN

G

FIE

LD

CL

O

SE

ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE A4
Check all dimensions on site and immediately report any
discrepancies to the Contract administrator
REV:

DESCRIPTION:

DATE:

*

***********

****

PROJECT:

Proposed Development
at Hill Road Watlington
THE OXFORD DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

GLEBE & BUILDINGS COMMITTEE

DIOCESAN CHURCH HOUSE
LANGFORD LOCKS
OXFORD OX5 1GF

DIRECTOR OF GLEBE AND BUILDINGS DAVID J MASON RICS

TEL: OXFORD (01865) 208200
FAX: OXFORD (01865) 208244

TITLE:

CLIENT:

OXFORD DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE
CHURCH HOUSE
LANGFORD LOCKS
KIDLINGTON OXON
OX5 1GF

Site Location Plan

PLANNING

STATUS:

15/499/545/004 REV: *
Page 58
SJL
DATE:
April 2018

DRAWING No:
DRAWN BY:

SCALE: 1:1250

NOTES :
1.

THE
CARRIERS
ARMS
CAR PARK

HI
LL

RO
AD

NO.10

ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE A1
Check all dimensions on site and immediately report any
discrepancies to the Contract administrator

REV:
A
GA
RA
GE

DESCRIPTION:

DATE:

House relocated on the site and
reduced in size following comments
from Planning Officer .

29.06.18

SP

RI

NG

LA

NE

NO.12

NO.36

THE OXFORD DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

GLEBE & BUILDINGS COMMITTEE

DIOCESAN CHURCH HOUSE
NORTH HINKSEY
OXFORD OX2 0NB

DIRECTOR OF GLEBE AND BUILDINGS DAVID J MASON RICS

TEL: OXFORD (01865) 208200
FAX: OXFORD (01865) 208244

CLIENT:

OXFORD DIOCESAN BOARD
of FINANCE
CHURCH HOUSE
LANGFORD LOCKS
KIDLINGTON OXFORD
OX5 1GF

PRIVATE GARDEN

PROJECT:

Proposed Development
at
Hill Road Watlington
Oxon
OX49 5AD
TITLE:

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Page 59

STATUS:

Planning

SCALE: 1:200

DRAWING No:

15/499/545/002

REV:

DRAWN BY:

SJL

DATE:

A

June 2018

NOTES :
1.

ORIGINAL PAPER SIZE A1
Check all dimensions on site and immediately report any
discrepancies to the Contract administrator

REV:
A

DATE:

DESCRIPTION:
Proposed House relocated on the site
and reduced in size and height
following comments from Planning
Officer .

THE OXFORD DIOCESAN BOARD OF FINANCE

29.06.18

GLEBE & BUILDINGS COMMITTEE

DIOCESAN CHURCH HOUSE
NORTH HINKSEY
OXFORD OX2 0NB

DIRECTOR OF GLEBE AND BUILDINGS DAVID J MASON RICS

TEL: OXFORD (01865) 208200
FAX: OXFORD (01865) 208244

CLIENT:

Oxford Diocesan Board
of Finance
Church House Langford Locks
Kidlington Oxford OX5 1GF
PROJECT:

Proposed Development
at
Hill Road Watlington
Oxon
OX49 5AD
TITLE:

Elevations
and
Floor Plans
Page 60

STATUS:

For Comments only

SCALE: 1:100

DRAWING No:

17/484/545/100

REV:

DRAWN BY:

SJL

DATE:

A

Jan 2018

Agenda Item 12
South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBERS
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL
OFFICER

P18/S2377/FUL & P18/S2378/LB
FULL APPLICATION & LISTED BLDG. CONSENT
13.8.2018
Binfield Heath
Will Hall & Paul Harrison
Phillimore Successors Settlement
Annexe, Crowsley Park Farm, Crowsley, RG9 4JN
Retention of Crowsley Park Farmhouse Annexe as
an independent residential dwelling and for
associated alterations to the building.
Marc Pullen

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
These applications are referred to Planning Committee as the views of Binfield Heath
Parish Council conflicts with the view of officers.

1.2

The application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A)
contains a single storey building which has been converted into residential use without
planning consent or listed building consent. The site is served by private amenity
space to the rear and an area for parking and turning to the front. The site lies within
the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).

2.0
2.1

PROPOSAL
These applications seek retrospective planning permission and listed building consent
for the conversion of the building into residential use, as a separate dwelling.

2.2

A copy of all the current plans accompanying the application is attached as Appendix
B. Other documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s
website, www.southoxon.gov.uk

3.0
3.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Binfield Heath Parish Council – Object
 Would normally support conversion of old barns into houses, however the tiny,
ancient hamlet of Crowsley is in our view a special case, in which circumstances
dictate otherwise.
 As many as half the houses are grade 2 listed and their individual settings,
together with the heritage importance of the hamlet as a whole, are of great
historical value and must be protected.
 Viewed externally the Annexe in question belongs intrinsically to the curtilage of
Crowsley Park Farm. It appears as an additional outbuilding to that house,
which is its current legal planning status (despite the recent illegal works and
current use).
 To allow it to remain as anything other than ancillary accommodation to the
farmhouse, with shared access from the track serving other properties thereby
causing continuing intrusive noise, would adversely affect the setting of a
number of nearby similarly listed houses.
 Its setting and peaceful environment would be compromised if the Annexe were
to be permanently occupied.
 We would also be concerned that new garaging might be proposed both for this
Annexe and for the farmhouse in the future.
 We consider that the fine houses in this hamlet, of so much architectural

Page 61

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

interest, should be protected from further unnecessary change and that this old
barn should be contained within the original curtilage to which it naturally
belongs.
Conservation Officer – No objections
Neighbour – 5 representations of objection:
 Harm caused by traffic and noise from extra vehicles driving down lane
 Precedent has been set that a building can be converted without consent
 Property is now too close to neighbours in Harvest House
 The proposed development would diminish parking for Crowsley Park Farm
 Harm caused by overlooking to Harvest House
 Inadequate garden sizes
 By converting the annexe into a separate dwelling from the Farmhouse it would
damage the historic link between the two buildings and its value as a Grade II
heritage asset
4.0
4.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
SE17/201 - (Ongoing)
Without planning permission the change of use of a games room to a dwelling.
P15/S1993/DIS - Approved (15/07/2015)
Discharge condition 4 of listed building consent P14/S2986/LB.
Refurbishment of existing Grade II Listed outbuilding to become a car port, external
store and games room.
P14/S2986/LB & P14/S2985/HH - Approved (08/12/2014)
Refurbishment of existing Grade II Listed outbuilding to become a car port, external
store and games room.

5.0
5.1

POLICY & GUIDANCE
National Planning Policy Framework & National Planning Practice Guidance

5.2

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2012 policies;
CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1 - Landscape protection
CSEN3 - Historic Environment
CSQ3 - Design
CSS1 - The Overall Strategy

5.3

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
CON3 - Alterations to listed buildings
CON4 - Change of use of listed buildings
CON5 - Setting of listed building
D1 - Principles of good design
E8 - Re-use or adaptation of rural buildings outside built up areas
G2 - Protect district from adverse development
G4 - Protection of Countryside
H4 - Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1 - Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2 - Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016

Page 62

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

6.0
6.1

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
 Principle of development
 Impact on character and appearance
 Impact on listed building
 Impact on amenity of neighbours
 Other matters
Principle of development

6.2

Works to convert the building have already been carried out. Planning permission and
listed building consent were granted in December 2014 for the refurbishment of the
existing grade II listed outbuilding to become a car port, external store and games
room. This building has subsequently been converted into a separate dwelling house
without planning permission or listed building consent. These applications seek to
regularise this.

6.3

The principle of new-build residential development would not be supported in this
location. However, Policy E8 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan (SOLP) is a
permissive policy for the re-use of rural buildings provided that certain criteria are met
to ensure that the proposal is suitable. The outbuilding itself is curtilage listed to the
main listed building but has previously been used for agricultural use. An assessment
under Policy E8 (SOLP) was made in the determination of application P14/S2985/HH
and was found to adhere to the requirements of this policy. Officers consider that the
principle of converting the building into residential use is also acceptable given the
same assessment (see attached as Appendix C for previous delegated report).
Impact on character and appearance

6.4

Council policies seek to ensure that development within the District responds positively
to and respects the character of a site and its surroundings and adopts good quality
design and the use of appropriate materials. As the site falls within the Chilterns Area
of Outstanding Natural Beauty the development falls to be considered by policy CSEN1
of the SOCS which seeks to ensure that measures are sought to integrate development
into the landscape character of the area.

6.5

The proposed development has retained the existing form of the previous disused
agricultural building with some alterations to accommodate its new use. These
alterations appear to be minor in scale and have not introduced any overly domestic
features or any substantial physical interruptions in the elevations or roof slope; which
give the building its rural character. The converted building is to be served by more
than the advised 50sqm of private amenity space as advised by the South Oxfordshire
Design Guide. Indeed, the private amenity space is not considered inadequate and
does not result in a cramped form of development and does not diminish the open rural
character of the area.

6.6

Officers are satisfied that these changes have not harmed the overall agricultural
character and form of the building and that the conversion has not resulted in any
significant or substantial structural alterations to the building. As such the conversion of
the building has adhered to Policy E8, D1 and G2 (SOLP) and Policy CSEN1 (SOCS).
Impact on listed building

6.7

As the outbuilding is curtilage listed, any alterations to the building must be considered
against Policy CON3 (SOLP) and Policy CSEN3 (SOCS). These policies seek to
ensure that any alterations to the outbuilding respect its established character and do
Page 63

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

not diminish the special historical or architectural qualities of the building which make it
worthy of listing and that these assets are conserved and enhanced for their historic
significance.
6.8

As part of the consented scheme, the approved plans and discharged conditions were
specifically agreed to ensure the fabric was appropriately conserved. In consultation
with the Conservation Officer, officers are satisfied that the proposed conversion has
not diminished the special historic or architectural qualities of the building and the
impact is regarded as acceptable. In addition, the setting of the listed building;
Crowsley Park Farm would not be adversely harmed.
Impact on neighbour amenity

6.9

Council policies and guidance seek to ensure that all development is sympathetic to
neighbours and does not amount to any significant harm to the amenity of neighbours
by reason of harming outlook, privacy or access to daylight. Policy E8 and H4 (SOLP)
support new housing and the conversion of agricultural buildings into houses where
there is no overriding amenity harm to the area.

6.10

Upon an assessment of the development on site, it is clear that sufficient distance
exists between the building and neighbouring properties (approximately 24 metres). In
addition, the internal layout of the building avoids any immediate opportunities to look
towards neighbouring properties at a short distance. I do not consider that the
development has resulted in any adverse harm to neighbours by reason of overlooking
or loss of privacy.

6.11

The building lies a sufficient distance away from neighbours and the shallow and
modest size of the building certainly does not have an adverse overbearing or
oppressive impact on neighbours. Officers note the issues of concern relating to car
movements and noise as a result, by travelling over gravel. This is a very typical
occurrence for such a development and is a momentary noise generation. The noise
generated is not considered to be severe, to the effect of harming the enjoyment and
habitation of neighbour’s properties.
Access and impact on parking

6.12

The Council’s policies and guidance seek to ensure that in determining planning
applications, the Council should, in consultation with the local highway authority, ensure
that new developments are designed to a standard that ensures a safe and attractive
environment and does not result in an unacceptable level of traffic on the local highway
network or have a detrimental impact on the amenities and environment of the area.

6.13

The access to the new dwelling is not considered to be inadequate or dangerous. The
parking provision is adequate and allows for the parking of at least two parking spaces.
The development has not resulted in inadequate provision of land for parking for
neighbouring Crowsley Park Farm. As such, the development is considered to comply
with the provisions of Policy T1 and T2 (SOLP).
Other matters

6.14

Community Infrastructure Levy - In this instance, a CIL charge would be applicable to
the conversion of the building as the building has not been occupied for its lawful use
for 6 continuous months of the 36 previous months. Since the development has
already been implemented the full charge would need to be paid and exemption cannot
be claimed.

Page 64

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

7.0
7.1

CONCLUSIONS
P18/S2377/FUL
Planning permission should be granted. The principle to convert the building is
considered to be compliant with policy and subject to the attached conditions, the
proposal would not be harmful to the character and appearance of the site and
surrounding area or the amenity of neighbours.

7.2

P18/S2378/LB
Listed building consent should be granted as the proposal complies with the relevant
Development Plan Policies and, subject to the attached conditions would not be
harmful to the character and the architectural and historic interest of the listed building.

8.0
8.1

RECOMMENDATIONS
To grant planning permission for application P18/S2377/FUL, subject to the
following conditions:
1. Approved plans.
2. Withdrawal of permitted development rights (Part 1 Class A) - no
extensions etc.
3. Withdrawal of permitted development rights (Part 1 Class E) - no buildings
etc.
4. Withdrawal of permitted development rights (Part 2 Class A) - no walls,
fences etc.

8.2

To grant listed building consent for application P18/S2378/LB, subject to the
following condition:
1. Approved plans (listed building).

Author:

Marc Pullen

Contact No: 01235 422600
Email:

palnning@southoxon.gov.uk

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Agenda Item 12

Page 67

Appendix B

179375

Crowsley
Grange

Lawn

179350

Access Road

Lawn/
Planting

. 5m

179325

New privet hedge

Crowsley
Park
Farmhouse

Min

Pad foundations for
timber gates
Existing hedge to be
maintained
Gravel driveway with brick edging

Proposed Soakaway:
Proposed soakaway for outbuilding rainwater drainage

Parking:
Car parking for 3 cars
Gravel Path:
1500mm Path around the perimeter of
the house with timber edging.

Key:

R7

+76.88m

Min. 5m

Gravel Driveway

External Paving
Area:49m2
Gravel Driveway and
Path
Area: 647m2

00

0

Brick pier:
Proposed brick pier to end of listed wall

A

North Ele

vation
B

+76.79m

Sewage Treatment Plant:
with soakaway as per specialist's
specification

+76.78m

UP

+76.91m

00

+76.65m

70

UP

C

+77.08m

D
E

vation

+76.75m

West Ele

+76.84m

E

Listed Wall:
Existing listed wall. To be refurbished

+76.92m
East Ele

vation

179300

Oil Tank:
New tank in existing tank position

+77.04m

5m

+76.82m

Mi
n.

+77.05m

+76.98m
A

+76.99m
B

Paving
C

South Ele

vation

NEW
SOAKAW
AY

D

UP

Lawn:
Area of grass/lawn to be
landscaped down to edge of
path

Rainwater Soakaway:
Proposed location

External Steps:
Stone steps leading to paved area

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2013. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432
Page 68

Spratley Studios Ltd.
Isis House
43 Station Road
Henley-on-Thames
Oxon RG9 1AT

Telephone 01491 411277
Fax 01491 411383
design@spratley.co.uk
www.spratley.co.uk

spratley

Notes: Rev Issue Date
A
B
C

14.07.2014
05.01.2015
02.03.2015

D
E

06.03.2015
25.09.2015

Notes

Drawn

Checked

Scale changed to 1:200. Driveway route redesigned
Pathway to Outbuilding reduced in length
Driveway rerouted to existing line of driveway, alteration of line of gates. The addition of gravel access paths to
paddock, with an estate fence with two gates. Relocation of proposed oil tank and sewage treatment plant.
Privet hedge added to entrance gate boundary
As-built issue

KB
KB
KB

RK
RK
RK

KB
KB

RK
RK

472675

472650

472625

472600

472575

472550

Lawn

Trees:
Existing trees of varying
sizes on site perimeter

Project:

Description:

CROWSLEY PARK FARMHOUSE
BINFIELD HEATH

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Client:

Date:

N

studios

PHILLIMORE SUCCESSORS SETTLEMENT JUNE 2014
Issued only for purpose indicated. This drawing to be read in
conjunction with all Consultants information. All dimensions
be checked on site. Do not scale. This drawing is copyright.

Status:

Drawn :

Checked :

AS-BUILT

KB

RK

Scale:

1:200

Job No:

Drawing No:

Rev:

13.492.

GA.1200

E

2000

1050
345

OD.02
OD.01

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION

OUTBUILDING

OUTBUILDING

OD.03

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION

OUTBUILDING

OUTBUILDING

Notes: Rev Issue Date

Notes

Drawn

Checked

Page 69

Project:

Description:

CROWSLEY PARK FARMHOUSE
BINFIELD HEATH

PROPOSED OUTBUILDING ELEVATIONS

Client:

Date:

PHILLIMORE SUCCESSORS SETTLEMENT AUGUST 2018
Issued only for purpose indicated. This drawing to be read in
conjunction with all Consultants information. All dimensions
be checked on site. Do not scale. This drawing is copyright.

Status:

Drawn :

Checked :

AS-BUILT

KB

RK

Scale:

1:50

Job No:

Drawing No:

Rev:

13.492.

GA.1600

-

OD.02

OD.01

Kitchen
OB02
FFL +77.1m

Living Room
OB03
FFL +77.1m
2936

Bedroom 1

4670

6244

OB01
FFL +77.1m

1220

OD.05

Bathroom

Bedroom 2
OB04
FFL +77.1m

940

1200

OB05
FFL +77.1m

900

MINIMUM 5 METRE DISTANCE

OD.03

NEW
SOAKAWAY

Page 70

Notes: Rev Issue Date

N 19.03.18
O 26.03.18
P 13.08.18

Notes

Layout updated
Parking spaces updated
Rooflights updated

Drawn

VG
VG
IG

Checked

VG

Project:

Description:

CROWSLEY PARK FARMHOUSE
BINFIELD HEATH

PROPOSED OUTBUILDING
GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Client:

Date:

N
PHILLIMORE SUCCESSORS SETTLEMENT JUNE 2014
Issued only for purpose indicated. This drawing to be read in
conjunction with all Consultants information. All dimensions
be checked on site. Do not scale. This drawing is copyright.

Status:

Drawn :

Checked :

AS-BUILT

VG

RK

Scale:

1:50

Job No:

Drawing No:

Rev:

13.492.

GA.1320

P

South Oxfordshire District Council – Delegated Report

Appendix C
APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL

AMENDMENTS
GRID REFERENCE
OFFICER

P14/S2985/HH & P14/S2986/LB
HOUSEHOLDER & LISTED BLDG. CONSENT
3.10.2014
BINFIELD HEATH
Robert Simister
Malcolm Leonard
Mr David Surtees-Dawson
Crowsley Park Farm Crowsley, RG9 4JN
Refurbishment of existing Grade II Listed outbuilding
to become a car port, external store and games
room.
None
472633/179316
Marc Pullen

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
Crowsley Park Farm is a two storey Grade II listed dwelling which dates back to late
seventeenth century. The outbuilding which lies to the north east of the property is
considered listed by association within the curtilage of the property. The site falls
within the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

2.0
2.1

PROPOSAL
This application seeks both listed building consent and planning permission for the
refurbishment and conversion of the existing Grade II listed outbuilding to be utilised as
use ancillary to the main dwellinghouse.

3.0
3.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Binfield Heath Parish Council - Approve
Countryside Officer (SODC & VoWH) - No strong views
Conservation Officer (SODC) - No strong views

4.0
4.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P14/S2926/DIS - Approved (13/10/2014)
Demolition of existing single storey extension. Erection of a two storey extension and
alterations. Discharge of conditions 3b (materials), c (rooflights), d (glazed link) and e
(exterior goods) on application ref. P13/S3848/LB
P13/S3847/HH & P13/S3848/LB - Approved (28/03/2014)
Demolition of existing single storey extension. Erection of a two storey extension and
alterations (Application amended 20-03-2014 following series of correspondence and
amended plans).

5.0
5.1

POLICY & GUIDANCE
National Planning Policy Framework & National Planning Practice Guidance

5.2

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2012 policies;
CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1 - Landscape protection
CSEN3 - Historic Environment
CSQ3 - Design
CSS1 - The Overall Strategy

1

Page 71

South Oxfordshire District Council – Delegated Report

5.3

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
C4 - Landscape setting of settlements
C8 - Adverse affect on protected species
CON3 - Alteration to listed building
D1 - Principles of good design
E8 - Re-use of rural buildings
G2 - Protect district from adverse development
H13 - Extension to dwelling

5.4

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2008

6.0
6.1

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main planning considerations in the determination of these applications area
• Impact on the character and appearance of the site
• Impact on the Grade II listed building
• Impact on protected species of bats
• Impact on neighbouring amenity

6.2

Council policies seek to ensure that development within the District responds positively
to and respects the character of a site and its surroundings and adopts good quality
design and the use of appropriate materials. As the site falls within the Chilterns Area
of Outstanding Natural Beauty the development falls to be considered by Policy CSEN1
of the SOCS which seeks to ensure that measures are sought to integrate development
into the landscape character of the area.

6.3

Policy E8 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that the principle of re-using and converting
rural buildings can be achieved without substantial construction or major or complete
reconstruction. The policy seeks to maintain the fabric and character of the structure
and that their resulting form, bulk and general design are in keeping with their
surroundings.

6.4

The proposed outbuilding would retain the existing form and bulk of the disused
agricultural building with alterations to accommodate its new use. These alterations are
largely cosmetic as to bring the building back to use with the continued use of the
existing openings. Officers are satisfied that these changes would not harm the
appearance or character of this outbuilding and instead would positively alter the
building. Further to the above these applications seek to insert additional openings and
windows along the southern elevation to enable access and light into the outbuilding.
Officers consider these to be appropriate in design and not overly excessive as to
detract from the rural character of the building, as such the proposed changes are
considered to adhere to Policy E8, D1 and G2 of the SOLP and CSEN1 of the SOCS.

6.5

As the outbuilding is curtilage listed, the proposed alterations should be considered
against Policy CON3 of the SOLP and CSEN3 of the SOCS. These policies seek to
ensure that any alterations to the outbuilding respect its established character and do
not diminish the special historical or architectural qualities of the building which make it
worthy of listing and that these assets are conserved and enhanced for their historic
significance. The Council’s Conservation Officer considers the application acceptable
following the amendments to the scheme to omit the use of the chemical DPC and the
reduction in openings along ground floor level. Two conditions have been attached to
seek information relating to the structural works and use of materials.

6.6

Policy C8 of the SOLP seeks to ensure that development within areas supporting a
specially protected species protects against any potential harm to these species. The
2

Page 72

South Oxfordshire District Council – Delegated Report

building is in a poor state of repair with many openings and a very light interior, in it’s
present state it is not considered to home protected species such as bats or barn owls
however the Countryside Officer suggests that an informative is attached to the
householder application to ensure the protection of any protected species found on site.
6.7

Policy H13 criteria (iii) of the Local Plan seeks to ensure that extensions to
dwellinghouses are permitted provided that the amenity of occupants living in nearby
properties is not materially harmed. Given the location of this outbuilding and its
relation to neighbouring properties I consider that the proposed development would not
harm the amenities of neighbours.

6.8

In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF the Council takes a positive
and proactive approach to development proposals. The Planning Service worked with
the applicant/agent in a positive and proactive manner by updating the applicant/agent
of issues that arose during the application process, suggesting a solution to objections
and providing an opportunity to submit amended plans.

7.0

CONCLUSIONS

7.1

P14/S2985/HH
Planning permission is granted as the proposal complies with the relevant Development
Plan Policies and, subject to the attached conditions would not be harmful to the
character and appearance of the site and surrounding AONB, any protected species
which might be identified on site or the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

7.2

P14/S2986/LB
Listed building consent is granted as the proposal complies with the relevant
Development Plan Policies and, subject to the attached conditions would not be
harmful to the special historical or architectural qualities of the listed building.

8.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1

P14/S2985/HH
1 : Commencement 3 yrs - Full Planning Permission
2 : Approved plans *
3 : Materials as on plan
4 : Wildlife Informative

8.2

P14/S2986/LB
1 : Commencement 3 yrs - Listed Building Consent
2 : Approved plans (listed building) *
3 : Materials as on plan
4 : Submission of details

Tom Wyatt
Development Management Team Leader (Applications)

3

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBER
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL
OFFICER

P18/S2504/FUL
FULL APPLICATION
21.8.2018
GORING HEATH
Robert Simister
Mr & Mrs Paul Arrowsmith
15 Hocketts Close Whitchurch Hill, RG8 7PZ
Division of existing residence into 2 separate
dwellings.
Marc Pullen

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION
This application is referred to the Planning Committee because the officers’
recommendation conflicts with the view of the parish Council.

1.2

The application site (which is shown on the OS extract attached as Appendix A)
contains a single storey building which forms part of the curtilage of 15 Hocketts
Close. The building was previously used exclusively as garage accommodation in
association with 15 Hocketts Close.

2.0
2.1

PROPOSAL
This application seeks planning permission to convert the building into a separate
dwelling. The development would separate the building and garden to the rear of it to
form a separate planning unit. Parking would be provided to the front of the building for
at least two cars.

2.2

The application site has been subject to a number of previous applications and
planning permissions to convert the building into an annex with carer’s accommodation
have recently been permitted. The relevant planning history is outlined below. .

2.3

A copy of all the current plans accompanying the application is attached as Appendix
B. Other documentation associated with the application can be viewed on the council’s
website, www.southoxon.gov.uk.

3.0
3.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Goring Heath Parish Council - Object
 Adverse impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties, and results in
inadequate parking.
 Parking spaces have been provided without planning consent, resulting in the
appearance of a more congested urban development.
 This building has been the subject of a number of planning applications to
increase its size, and its use is now as an annex to be occupied by a dependent
person of the main house. It now appears to be let commercially.
 Previous consent repeated conditions which this application now seeks to
cancel. These conditions are still valid and should be applied and enforced.
 The application fails to meet Policies G2 , H4, H11 and H13 of the SODC Local
Plan
Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections subject to
conditions

Page 75

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

Neighbours – Two representations of objection:
 Major traffic congestion at this end of Hocketts Close (Nos. 10,11,12 & 15)
continues to be a real threat in a short, private road of varying width & no
pavement
 I note that if Planning Permission is granted for this application it will be in direct
contradiction of Condition 4 of the Planning Permission granted under
Application No: P15/S1879/HH in July 2015
 Will change the appearance of the private drive, which is clearly not large
enough for further parking spaces
4.0
4.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
SE18/158 - (Ongoing)
Alleged breach of condition 5 of P16/S0811/HH - use of accommodation as separate
dwelling.
P16/S0811/HH - Approved (28/05/2016)
Formation of overnight carers room. (As supplemented by car parking plan BLO-001).
P15/S1879/HH - Approved (23/07/2015)
Formation of granny flat with retention of car park space in garage.
P14/S2340/HH - Approved (16/09/2014)
Alterations to existing hobby room to form granny flat.

5.0
5.1

POLICY & GUIDANCE
National Planning Policy Framework & National Planning Practice Guidance

5.2

South Oxfordshire Core Strategy 2012 policies;
CS1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development
CSEN1 - Landscape protection
CSQ3 - Design
CSR1 - Housing in villages

5.3

South Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 policies;
D1 - Principles of good design
D2 - Safe and secure parking
D3 - Outdoor amenity area
D4 - Reasonable level of privacy
D10 - Waste management
G2 - Protect district from adverse development
H4 - Housing sites in towns and larger villages outside Green Belt
T1 - Safe, convenient and adequate highway network for all users
T2 - Unloading, turning and parking for all highway users

5.4

South Oxfordshire Design Guide 2016

6.0
6.1

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
 Principle of development
 Impact on character and appearance
 Impact on neighbour amenity
 Parking and access
 Other matters

Page 76

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

Principle of development
6.2

The application site lies within Whitchurch Hill. Proposals for new housing in
Whitchurch Hill are largely governed by policies H4 of the South Oxfordshire Local Plan
(SOLP) and CSR1 of the South Oxfordshire Core Strategy (SOCS). Policy CSR1 of the
SOCS allows for new housing in Whitchurch Hill on suitable infill sites. The definition of
infill is set out within the SOCS as the filling of a small gap in an otherwise built-up
frontage or on other sites where the site is closely surrounded by other buildings.

6.3

The site meets the definition of infill and the principle of the development is considered
acceptable, subject to an assessment of the impact of the development. It therefore
follows that Policy H4 (SOLP) is engaged in order to assess the appropriateness of the
residential development.
Impact on character and appearance

6.4

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) confirms a presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development. The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) elaborates on the
NPPF, stating that development should seek to promote character and landscape by
responding to and reinforcing locally distinctive patterns of development. New
development should look to respond appropriately to the existing layout of buildings,
streets and spaces. It is important to establish appropriate layouts, forms, massing and
scales of new buildings in respect of their surroundings.

6.5

Policy CSQ3 (SOCS) and Policy D1 and G2 (SOLP) seek to ensure that all new
development is of a high-quality design which responds positively to and respects the
character of the site and its surroundings, enhancing local distinctiveness and ensuring
that new development is of a scale, type and density appropriate to the site and its
setting. Policy H4 (SOLP) seeks to ensure that all new residential development is of a
design, height, scale and appearance that is in keeping with its surroundings and that
the character of an area is not adversely affected by the proposal.

6.6

The dwelling has evolved from a previous double garage with extensions to form a
larger unit which is now used as a single-bedroom, independent, dwellinghouse. The
form and appearance of the building is as previously agreed for an ancillary building.
Whilst it is accepted that the use now departs from the approved ancillary function, the
physical implications of this change are minimal. The housing estate would be
increased in density as a result of this dwelling, but the physical implications of this
would not diminish the character or appearance of the estate. The parking of vehicles
can be accommodated without compromising the established character and the
provision of private amenity space would be adequate given the advice (35sqm for onebedroom dwelling) set out within the South Oxfordshire Design Guide (SODG).
Parking and access

6.7

The local highway authority raises no objection to the proposed development on
highway grounds. However, they do request that a condition is attached to retain
parking and manoeuvring as per the plans provided and to ensure that the garage is
not converted into living accommodation without first obtaining planning permission.

6.8

Officers note that there are two parking spaces on site which are not shown on the
application plans. The applicant has explained that these are only temporary. Since
these spaces are not causing any highway difficulties and they do not require planning

Page 77

South Oxfordshire District Council – Planning Committee – 21 November 2018

permission to be in place, I do not consider it necessary to request these are removed
and the land is restored back to its former state.
Other matters
6.9

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) - The council’s CIL charging schedule has been
adopted and has applied to relevant proposals. The council’s CIL is a planning charge
that local authorities can implement to help deliver infrastructure and to support the
development of their area and is primarily calculated on the increase in footprint created
as a result of the development.

7.0
7.1

CONCLUSION
Planning permission should be granted. The proposed development is considered to
acceptable in principle and subject to the attached conditions would not result in any
harm to the character and appearance of the area, the amenity of neighbours or the
access arrangement into the Close or the safety of the highway network.

8.0
8.1

RECOMMENDATION
To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:
1. Development to be in place in accordance with the approved plans.
2. Withdrawal of permitted development rights to extend the property (Part 1
Class A).
3. Withdrawal of permitted development rights for outbuildings (Part 1 Class
E).
4. The parking & manoeuvring areas as shown on plan to be retained as
such and not obstructed other than the parking of a private vehicle.
5. The garage accommodation shall not be converted into living
accommodation without first obtaining prior permission from the Local
Planning Authority.

Author: Marc Pullen
Email: planning@southoxon.gov.uk
Tel:

01235 422600

Page 78

Appendix A

Agenda Item 13

Page 79

Appendix B

Page 80

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

